
 

Page 1 of 1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
AUGUST 21, 2019 – 1:30 PM 

5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

 

 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approval of the August 7, 2019 Board Minutes 

 
3. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

 
4. Board Member Announcements 

 
5. General Manager’s Report 

 
6. Consent 

a. Approval of Monthly Financial Report 
 

7. Authorize the General Manager to Award a Sole-Source Purchase Order to KNORR Brake 
Company for the Purchase of Services for the Rail Cars Air Brake Overhaul in an amount not-
to-exceed $570,080 
 

8. 2019 Strategic Plan Review (Discussion Only) 
 

9. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, September 4, 2019 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood 
Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954 
 

10. Adjournment 
 
DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that requires 
an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SMART at least 72 hours prior to the meeting 
to ensure arrangements for accommodation. Please contact the Clerk of the Board at (707) 794-3072 or dial CRS 711 for more 
information.  
DOCUMENTS: Documents distributed by SMART for its monthly Board meeting or committee meetings, and which are not otherwise 
privileged, may be inspected at SMART’s office located at 5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200, Petaluma, CA 94954 during regular 
business hours. Documents may also be viewed on SMART’s website at: www.sonomamarintrain.org. Materials related to an item on 
this Agenda submitted to SMART after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection at the SMART Office. For 
information about accessing SMART meetings by public transit, use the trip planner at www.511 

Page 1 of 18 



Page 1 of 9 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
August 7, 2019 - 1:30 PM  

5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Phillips called the meeting to order at 1:30pm. Directors Connolly Fudge, Garbarino, 
Lucan, Naujokas, Pahre, Rabbitt, Rogers and Zane were present. Directors Arnold and 
Hillmer arrived later. 
 
Chair Phillips welcomed Patty Garbarino, who was appointed to the SMART Board by 
Golden Gate Bridge District. 
 

2. Approval of the July 17, 2019 Board Minutes  
 

Director Fudge stated that she gave minor spelling changes to the Clerk of the Board, 
Leticia Rosas-Mendoza. 

 
MOTION: Director Fudge moved approval of the July 17, 2019 Board Minutes with minor 
corrections, Director Rabbitt second. The motion carried 8-0 (Directors Rogers and Zane 
abstain; Directors Arnold and Hillmer arrived later). 
 

3. Public Comment 
  

Felix Huerta Jr. stated that SECA has been de-certified and now it’s Local Operating Union 
3, who represent the Engineer-Conductors. He addressed the Board by stating that he 
hopes, they are concerned about the safety of the employees, after hearing of train that 
was shot at. Currently the Engineer-Conductors contract does not have language related 
to breaks and lunches. He distributed SMART’s Personnel and Policies, pg. 139, which 
addresses Meals and Rest Periods, and read paragraph 3d. (copy with Clerk of Board). He 
also stated that an employee was suspended last year for 30-days without a skelly hearing 
and two more employees were suspended for 2-days and 3-days this year without a skelly 
hearing. He has been in contact with his office to get clarification on the rules.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 2 of 18 



Page 2 of 9 

Chair Phillips said he felt compelled to share his dissatisfaction with Mr. Huerta’s 
comments regarding the safety of SMART’s employees. and whether or not the Board is 
concerned about them; Mr. Phillips added was offended by the suggestion of Board not 
been concerned about employees. 

 
 Director Hillmer arrived 1:37pm 
 
 Duane Bellinger state that East Petaluma residents helped pass Measure Q since it had 

more votes than Novato. He also commented on the fact that it took 16-months for 
SMART to settle on a lawsuit, which could have been prevented if regulations and process 
would have been followed. Mr. Bellinger added that any proposed contract regarding the 
east Petaluma station, should be presented to the Board for consideration.  

 
 Director Arnold arrived 1:40pm 
 
 Dani Sheehan stated that she wrote a letter to the Press Democrat Editor stating that she 

is very moved by all the outreach that SMART has initiated specific to the issue of suicide 
in our community. 

  
4. Board Members Announcements 

 
Director Fudge acknowledged Communications and Marketing Manager, Jeanne Belding 
on her last Board meeting with SMART. They appreciate the creativeness that she brought 
to the job, along with all the outreach that has been conducted under her leadership. On 
behalf of the Board and others she wished her well in her new job and thanked her for 
her great service to SMART. 
 
Chair Phillips also thanked Jeanne Belding for the great service she provided. 
 
Director Rogers stated that the Administrative Law Judge was able to walk the Jennings 
Avenue detour last week, who is overseeing the case along with the City of Santa Rosa, 
Friends of SMART, Bicycle Coalitions, Community members and SMART’s Staff. The City 
of Santa Rosa is seeking the extension to continue to work with SMART’s staff to build 
Jennings Avenue crossing.  
 

5. General Manager’s Report 
 
General Manager Mansourian said that Jeanne Belding has been a tremendous asset to 
SMART. Under her leadership, SMART brought in more than $1 million in advertising 
revenue sales. He thanked her for her service, she will be missed. 
 
SMART has carried 1,381,000 passengers, 129,000 bicycles, and over 5,100 wheelchairs.  
 
Mr. Mansourian stated that Larkspur construction is almost completed and testing will 
start soon. Testing will begin this weekend in the City of Novato, the City of San Rafael 

Page 3 of 18 



Page 3 of 9 

and Larkspur will follow. The next phase of testing is very important, he added all features 
(structures and train control system) will be tested, this testing will occur during the night 
hours due to passenger service during the day. During the night testing you will hear the 
train horn, and please be patient with us, this testing is to maximize the safety prior to 
opening day. This testing prior to the opening of Larkspur will also require passenger 
service interruptions for high speed testing. 
 
On Saturday, August 10, SMART will provide a bus bridge to take passengers between the 
San Marin and Hamilton stations while the track at Grant Avenue in Novato is closed for 
track construction.  
 
General Manager Mansourian presented to the Board and members of the public the 
steps that SMART has taken since last Board Meeting regarding Suicide Prevention. He is 
very proud of how many agencies have reached out and are joining the Coalition.  
Highlights include: 

▪ Meeting occurred on Monday, July 22nd to outline an action plan  
▪ SMART area of expertise are the three “E” principles: Engineering, Education, 

Enforcement 
▪ A Coalition of more than 35 agencies and organization have come together to help 
▪ Awareness Outreach 

o With more partners engaged in this issue, we have quickly implemented 
messaging on trains and near stations, and social media messaging 

o Signage has been installed on the new Z-gate fencing at railroad crossings to 
increase awareness and target distraction pedestrians 

o Led by Buckelew, our coalition partners will provide media training and share 
best practices for reporting on suicides 

o Our coalition partners will work with local media on suicide prevention 
awareness Public Service Announcement during the months of August, 
September and October. 

▪ Community Partnership 
o National Suicide Prevention Week - September 8-14, 2019: This is an annual 

week-long campaign in the United Stated 
o Rail Safety Week – September 22-28, 2019: This is a month-long safety 

campaign in conjunction with Operation Lifesaver and other rail transit 
systems across the country 

▪ Law Enforcement Partnership 
o Enforcement is essential at all railroad crossings 
o Plans are underway to coordinated with law enforcement in Sonoma and 

Marin Counites on community awareness day of focused enforcement 
along railroad crossings, similar to DUI checkpoints 
 

Lastly, Mr. Mansourian stated that SMART continues to be involved with this issue, we 
were the victims and feel horrible for the families of the deceased and our employees. He 
reported that SMART will be fully staff again staring on Thursday, August 8th when the last 
Engineer-Conductor returns back to work. 

Page 4 of 18 



Page 4 of 9 

Comments: 
Chair Phillips said that he had two meetings with the Marin Independent Journal to talk 
about the suicide issue. He complemented them on the sensitivity of the issue, it’s difficult 
for the press since its local issue, and at the same time they have done a good job avoiding 
the direct reference. 
 
Director Zane asked how is SMART increasing enforcement. Mr. Mansourian responded 
that this is the area that needs your help, contacting the California Highway Patrol and  
local police departments for them to assist and enforce traffic laws at railroad crossings. 
The railroad crossings are in County and City jurisdiction, where SMART does not have 
jurisdiction to enforce that traffic laws. Director Zane suggested that the General 
Manager Mansourian provide a letter that can be distributed to the Police Departments. 
 
Director Arnold thanked the General Manager for all the work that has been done and for 
choosing the correct partners to work with on the suicide issue.  
 
Director Rabbitt said that Quiet Zones north of Novato and South of Petaluma are 
pending. The County of Sonoma Public Works Department has hired a consultant to work 
on the process. There are approximately 10 crossing in the stretch from Novato to 
Petaluma and the California Public Utility Commission have visited them, also letters have 
been mailed to staff and elected officials.     
 
Chair Phillips asked what communities are affected by the testing. Mr. Mansourian 
responded that the City of Novato, City of San Rafael, City of Larkspur and the 
unincorporated area of Marin County. Testing will occur between the hours of 10pm and 
3:30am.  
 

6. Approve a Resolution and Authorize the Board Chair to Execute the Agreement between 
the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District and the International Brotherhood of 
Teamsters, Local Union Number 665 for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2022 
 

 Human Resources Manager, Lisa Hansley stated that the item today is to consider 3-year 
collective bargaining agreement between SMART and the International Brotherhood of 
Teamster Local Union Number 665 (Teamsters), which represent Signal Technicians, Track 
Maintainer I, Track Maintainer II, and Bridge Tenders. 

 
She thanked all SMART’s staff, and negotiators that worked on the agreement.  
 
The agreement retains the District’s current policies with modifications: Salaries – wage 
increase includes cost of living adjustments as well as equity increase. 
 
MOTION: Director Arnold moved to Approve a Resolution and Authorize the Board Chair 
to Execute the Agreement between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District and the 
International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local Union Number 665 for the period of July 
1, 2019 to June 30, 2022 as presented. Director Lucan second. The motion carried 12-0.  

Page 5 of 18 



Page 5 of 9 

 
7. Discussion of 2019 Strategic Plan’s Preliminary Financial and Projections (Discussion Only) 
 

Chief Financial Officer, Erin McGrath said that she and PFM Financial Advisors, Sarah 
Hollenbeck will be presenting to the Board a preview of the financial projections that will 
be part of the Strategic Plan. Highlighted included: 

▪ Timeline: 
o Today:  Board Workshop on Financial Projections - Receive input on 

preliminary projection results 
o August 15 and 29, 2019: Citizens Oversight Committee review Strategic Plan 
o September 4, and 19, 2019: Board Review Draft Ordinance and Expenditure 

Plan   
o October 2 and 16, 2019: Board Discussion and Approval of Strategic Plan 
o November 6, 2019: Final Board Action Approving Ballot Measure 
o March 3, 2020: Voter approval of Sales Tax Renewal  

▪ Six-Year View – Ms. McGrath illustrated a chart 
o Before completion of Phase 1; Fund Balance (unrestricted reserve) was 

planned and used for capital projects 
o Future operating costs exceed revenues and will deplete reserves and fund 

balance 
 

Ms. Hollenbeck provide an overview on different scenarios: 
▪ Under the scenario of NO 2020 Sales Tax Renewal 

o With no changes to planned operations, expenses would continue to exceed 
revenues every year through Fiscal Year 2029 

• Reduction of $9M needed to bring future into balance 
o Fund Balance (unrestricted reserve) projected to be fully depleted during 

Fiscal Year 2024 

• Operations unsustainable without cost reduction 
▪ Under the scenario of 20-Year Sales Tax and Debt Extension 

o 20-year extension of the sales tax would enable SMART to restructure 
outstanding debt – extending final maturity to fiscal year 2049 reduces annual 
payments by $12.2M, which will allow the operations to be fully funded thru 
2049 

o Expenses will exceed revenues annually until debt is restructured in fiscal year 
2022 

o From fiscal year 2023 forward, net revenue and fund balance (unrestricted 
reserve) remain positive through end of tax 

o Net revenue estimated at $3.1M in fiscal year 2023 and forecast to grow 
annually thereafter, which could be used to fund additional cost operating 
costs related to Healdsburg and Cloverdale 

o Net revenue would not provide sufficient capital for rail extensions 
▪ Under the scenario of 30-Year Sales Tax and Debt Extension 

o Restructuring outstanding debt with a final maturity to fiscal year 2052 (30 
years) reduces annual payments by $12.5M, which will allow the operations 

Page 6 of 18 



Page 6 of 9 

to be fully funded thru 2049 
o Expenses exceed revenues annually until debt is restructured in fiscal year 

2022 
o From fiscal year 2023 forward, net revenue and fund balance (unrestricted 

reserve) remain positive through end of tax 
o Net revenue estimated at $3.4 million in fiscal year 2023 and forecast to grow 

annually thereafter, which could be used to fund additional operating costs 
related to Healdsburg and Cloverdale 

o Additional years provide more flexibility to explore capital funding options 
with additional net revenue in later years 

 
Lastly, Ms. McGrath outlined the next steps:  

▪ Strategic Plan draft reviewed in August 2019 with the Citizen Oversight Committee 
▪ Alternative scenarios can be discussed 

 
Comments: 
Director Rogers said that Sonoma County Transportation Authority Measure M allocated 
5% of its funds toward operation cost for SMART. Does the 30-year chart assume the 
reauthorization of Measure M keeps the 5% or does it allow to sunset? Ms. McGrath 
responded that Measure M funds have been used for capital projects. SMART has not 
assumed the use of Measure M or made assumption in any models. He asked what is the 
amount of Measure M revenue received annually, are recession assumptions being 
considered or does it assume current sales tax figures from Measure Q. Ms. McGrath will 
research and provide a response at a later time. Also, a recession will occur in the future, 
however we don’t know when it could happen, we are modeling a 3% growth. 
 
Director Zane asked what types of cuts will occur if the sales tax extension is not passed 
in March 2020. Ms. McGrath responded that those types of cuts have not been identified, 
however a $9M cut is half of the operating department. Mr. Mansourian said many 
services will have to be consolidated as well as combining positions. Director Zane stated 
even if the financial projections are gloomy, we still have to find a balanced way to share 
with the public, in terms of what is happening. The message should be that public have 
spent millions toward this transportation system and this train belongs to the everyone. 
 
Director Hillmer asked if SMART has statistic on ridership when passenger service goes to 
Larkspur. Mr. Mansourian responded that we don’t have statistics, however the financial 
assumptions are conservative. Director Hillmer said there will be a mental shift once 
Larkspur opens, due to people living or working in San Francisco or anywhere along the 
rail line to Windsor and the perception of the system will change. 
 
Director Lucan ask how bond rates are factored and if SMART can’t restructure for 
another couple of years are there favorable and unfavorable times to refinance the 
bonds? Ms. Hollenbeck responded there is time before the bonds are at maturity date 
and will continue to look at creative ways to restructure.  
 

Page 7 of 18 



Page 7 of 9 

Director Naujokas asked how can he inform his constituents that even with the 30-year 
sales tax extension there are no funds available for the extension north of Windsor. Ms. 
McGrath responded that SMART has been very successful leveraging funds to get 
additional funds. In addition, the most successful way to get to Healdsburg is for the sales 
tax measure to pass, then SMART will have time to strategize on how to get passenger 
service further. Mr. Mansourian stated that the Board of Directors directed him to 
continue to work towards the completion to Cloverdale and with the pathway and that 
continues to be SMART mission. If we do nothing, passenger level of service will be 
jeopardized, if the sales tax is extended, it will stabilize SMART’s operation for the next 
20-30 years. After, it becomes a capital project game where the following agencies are 
major players: 1) Metropolitan Transportation Commission; 2) federal government; and 
3) Senate Bill 1 funds. SMART has accomplished a lot in the last 10 years and we want to 
be very transparent and have options. We are sorry, that what was promised in the 
original Expenditure Plan that on opening day passenger service would be from Larkspur 
to Cloverdale, however, the financial aspect did not work out. Also, let’s not forget that 
SMART services approximately 80% of the population from Sonoma and Marin Counties. 
Director Naujokas stated that if the debt service is restructured, SMART would be in a 
better situation. He asked if the sales tax is the only option to bring revenue, or are there 
other sources of revenue? Is there a way that SMART can capitalize on property values 
near SMART’s stations? Ms. McGrath responded that SMART has used the property value 
at Railroad Square in the model. Perhaps in partnership with Healdsburg and Cloverdale 
there are financial districts that could be establish where the cities can set up taxing 
districts and SMART continues to mitigate cost.  
 
Chair Phillips clarified that restructuring/refinancing the debt will not necessarily lower 
the interest rate on the bonds, however spreads out the debt payments. 
 
Director Hillmer stated that SMART has a role in both counties, and will be impacted if 
SMART was to decrease passenger service. He asked why would SMART consider anything 
short of the 30-year strategy. Ms. McGrath responded that she recommends nothing 
short of 30-year. Mr. Mansourian stated that tax payers have spent over $600M and now 
SMART needs to continue to maintain safely and efficiently. He cited that for every 1 
gallon of gas you are paying 0.40 cents on every $1.00 is tax, SMART receives 0.25 cents 
for every $100 spent. SMART has received $298M in sales tax funds and has leverage it 
for additional $350M in grants.  
 
Director Rabbitt stated he appreciates the honestly and the projections that were made 
for construction. The first time, the projections were low and of course the recession  
occurred. The longer the term (30-year), the more stable we can be. It’s not a secret, we 
are going to be dependent on sales tax. There will be opportunities to leverage funds, and 
the longer the debt service payments can be spread out can help tremendously to free 
cash flow. The challenge to get to Healdsburg is the expensive bridge cost. 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 18 



Page 8 of 9 

Director Connolly stated that is a valuable and honest discussion. We are getting a clear 
sense that even to continue operations, we need to think of how to restructure the debt 
and sales tax extension. He suggested the need to be more definitive and of course we 
can’t make any promises. Perhaps placing perimeters around the vision and convince the 
public, and reframe the message moving forward.  
 
Jack Swearingen stated that potential revenue from tourism will be enormous from 
Healdsburg to Cloverdale. Also, Friends of SMART will be happy to help distribute the 
message. 
 
Steve Birdlebough stated that he appreciates the work that staff produced.  
 
Duane Bellinger stated that none of the documents mention any funding for the Corona 
Station. If SMART needs to address the Corona Station to get the 650 votes of the 2/3rd 
votes required.  
 
Doug Kerr suggested providing a timeline of when SMART anticipates getting passenger 
service to Healdsburg and Cloverdale.  
 
Willard Richards suggested including the pathway in the capital projects budget. 
 
Chair Phillips stated that we have a reliable source of transportation that is clean, effective 
and fast. Also, a lot has been done to get to this point and he thanked the General 
Manager Mansourian and staff. SMART has done a remarkable progress with getting 
funding to continue extending the project. He has the following action items: 1) what will 
the cuts look like; 2) a recession will occur within 20-30 years; 3) ridership assumptions; 
4) maintenance and replacement of equipment/system; and 5) the vision. 
 
Director Naujokas would like to explore other revenue sources. 
 
Director Connolly said we need to present a realistic and positive vision to get public 
support. 
 
Director Rabbitt stated that we are paying for promises that were made 15 years ago right 
now. Once the cash flow is extended, funds will be available and SMART will know what 
the cost will be to get to Healdsburg and Cloverdale. In order to get further north, we 
need to be accurate with the cost and honest and we are better today, than we were 15- 
years ago. 
 
Director Lucan suggested perhaps looking at a timeframe longer than 30-years. This can 
send a message when looking for state and federal funds.  
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 18 



Page 9 of 9 

 
Director Arnold said that the State of California wants passenger service going East. This 
could be an opportunity for SMART to leverage funds with the State. 
 
Director Fudge stated that in 2007/2008 we only had construction estimates, and we now 
have actual costs to build the system. 
 
Director Zane stated that the train represents health in our economy and in the 
community. This has always been a gamechanger in terms of connecting Marin and now 
San Francisco. Every week she received positive comments of how the train have saved 
their lives. There is a great quote by John F. Kennedy.  
 
Director Damon read the John F. Kennedy quote “It is not our wealth that built our roads, 
but it is our roads that built our wealth.” 
 
Chair Phillips thanked the General Manager and staff for the report. 
  

8. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, August 21, 2019 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old Redwood 
Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954  

    
9. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned at 3:20pm.  
  
 Respectfully submitted, 
  

 
Leticia Rosas-Mendoza 

 Clerk of the Board      
 
 Approved on:          

Page 10 of 18 



Page 11 of 18 



Budget Report
FY 2019-20

Approved Budget
YTD Remaining Budget

Revenues

Administration

Sales/Use Taxes  $      27,973,136  -  $         27,973,136 

Interest Earnings 295,000 - 295,000 

Rent - Real Estate 265,755 24,257 241,498 

Advertising Revenue 221,750 - 221,750

Miscellaneous Revenue 50,000 - 50,000 

Administration Subtotal 28,805,641 24,257 28,781,384

Operations

Fund Balance 6,841,029 6,841,029 -

Sales/Use Tax 11,292,866 - 11,292,866 

Fare & Parking Revenue 4,187,000 314,009 3,872,991 

State Grants 7,404,794 - 7,404,794 

Other Charges 40,000 4,665 35,335 

Operations Subtotal 29,765,689 7,159,703 22,605,985

Capital

Fund Balance 23,716,938 23,716,938 -

Federal Funds 4,650,000 - 4,650,000 

State Grants 14,010,000 - 14,010,000 

Other Governments/Misc 4,528,192 - 4,528,192 

Measure M 200,625 - 200,625 

Capital Subtotal 47,105,755 23,716,938 23,388,817

Revenue Total 105,677,084$     30,900,898$        74,776,186$          

Expenditures

Administration

Salaries & Benefits  $        5,146,304  $            409,242  $           4,737,062 

Services & Supplies 6,716,737 59,422 5,915,559 

Debt Service/Other Charges 16,847,600 100,000 16,747,600 

Machinery & Equipment 95,000 12,761 82,239 

Administration Subtotal 28,805,641 581,425 27,482,460

Operations

Salaries & Benefits 16,045,052 1,142,686 14,902,366 

Services & Supplies 10,714,023 281,490 6,084,115 

Buildings & Capital Improvements 3,006,613 47,286 2,607,765 

Operations Subtotal 29,765,689 1,471,461 23,594,246

Capital

Salaries & Benefits 1,732,501 93,832 1,638,669 

Services & Supplies 1,319,750 1,116 1,152,634 

Land 11,000 11,000 -

Machinery & Equipment 15,110,495 4,400,000 487,695 

Infrastructure 28,932,008 - 26,454,452 

Capital Subtotal 47,105,755 4,505,948 29,733,450

Expenditure Total 105,712,935$     6,558,834$          80,810,156$          

Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District
Monthly Finance Reports

Through July 2019

Page 12 of 18 



Investment Report

Bond Reserve Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 17,072,500          

Interest Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 3,066,914            

Project Fund

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 979,245               

SMART Operating Accounts

Bank of Marin 7,117,587            

Sonoma County Treasury Pool 28,831,280          
Total 57,067,526$        

Capital Project Report

Budget Actual Remaining
Additional Railcar Purchase

Revenues 11,000,000$       1,650,000$          9,350,000$            
Expenditures 11,000,000$       8,831,978$          2,168,022$            

San Rafael to Larkspur Extension
Revenues 55,435,059$       44,741,641$        10,693,418$          
Expenditures 55,435,059$       44,852,492$        10,582,567$          

Windsor Extension
Revenues 55,000,000$       -$                     55,000,000$          
Expenditures 55,000,000$       1,158,641$          53,841,359$          

Petaluma Payran to Southpoint Pathway

Revenues 3,216,098$         344,854$             2,871,244$            

Expenditures 3,216,098$         528,594$             2,687,504$            

Page 13 of 18 



C
on

tr
ac

to
r

Sc
op

e
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 1
8/

19
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 1
8/

19
   

 
Ac

tu
al

s-
To

-D
at

e
A.

J. 
Ja

ni
to

ria
l S

er
vi

ce
Ja

ni
to

ria
l S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 a

ll 
St

at
io

ns
, R

ob
la

r, 
RO

C,
 a

nd
 F

ul
to

n
$1

04
,0

00
$7

,4
80

Ai
r T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
W

es
t

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 O
n-

Ca
ll 

Re
pa

ir 
fo

r A
ir 

Co
m

pr
es

so
rs

$1
,7

53
$0

Al
co

ho
l &

 D
ru

g 
Te

st
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
, L

LC
DO

T 
Dr

ug
 a

nd
 A

lc
oh

ol
 T

es
tin

g
$3

9,
00

0
$1

,7
44

Al
lia

nt
 In

su
ra

nc
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Br

ok
er

ag
e 

&
 R

isk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$8

0,
00

0
$0

Am
er

ic
an

 R
ai

l E
ng

in
ee

r C
or

po
ra

tio
n

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Br
id

ge
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
 In

sp
ec

tio
n,

 &
 D

es
ig

n
$4

8,
67

2
$0

Ar
am

ar
k 

U
ni

fo
rm

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Em

pl
oy

ee
 U

ni
fo

rm
 P

ro
vi

de
r a

nd
 C

le
an

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
e

$9
,7

12
$0

As
bu

ry
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s (

AE
S)

Re
cy

cl
in

g 
&

 D
isp

os
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 fo
r U

se
d 

O
il,

 F
ue

l F
ilt

er
s,

 R
ag

s,
 a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
$1

0,
00

0
$0

Be
co

m
in

g 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Bu
s B

rid
ge

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

5,
53

8
$0

Be
tt

in
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

$8
,8

63
$0

Bi
g 

Ca
t A

dv
er

tis
in

g
Di

gi
ta

l A
dv

er
tis

em
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

8,
00

0
$1

,5
00

Bi
gg

s C
ar

do
sa

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s,

 In
c.

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

De
sig

n 
an

d 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Su

pp
or

t f
or

 P
ay

ra
n 

to
 S

ou
th

po
in

t M
ul

ti-
U

se
 P

at
hw

ay
$4

3,
95

4
$0

Bu
rk

e,
 W

ill
ia

m
s &

 S
or

en
se

n,
 L

LP
Li

tig
at

io
n 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
63

,5
13

$0
CA

LO
PP

S 
- C

ity
 o

f F
os

te
r C

ity
HR

 R
ec

ru
itm

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
,5

00
$3

,5
00

Ci
nq

ui
ni

 &
 P

as
sa

rin
o,

 In
c.

Ri
gh

t-
of

-W
ay

 L
an

d 
Su

rv
ey

in
g 

an
d 

Re
la

te
d 

Se
rv

ic
es

$6
0,

00
0

$0
Co

re
y,

 C
an

ap
ar

y 
&

 G
al

an
is

N
TD

 C
om

pl
ia

nt
 P

as
se

ng
er

 C
ou

nt
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$1

6,
80

2
$0

Do
ug

 W
ill

ia
m

s
Fi

re
 a

nd
 L

ife
 S

af
et

y 
Co

ns
ul

ta
nt

$3
,0

00
$1

,4
59

Dr
. L

an
ce

 O
'C

on
no

r
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
,6

00
$0

Dr
. M

ar
k 

Cl
em

en
ti

Pr
e-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t P

sy
ch

ol
og

ic
al

 E
va

lu
at

io
ns

$2
5,

00
0

$2
,7

31
eL

oc
k 

Te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

, L
LC

St
at

io
n 

Bi
ke

 L
oc

ke
rs

 a
nd

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

2,
82

4
$0

Em
pi

re
 C

le
an

er
s

U
ni

fo
rm

 D
ry

-C
le

an
in

g,
 L

au
nd

er
in

g,
 a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$4
0,

00
0

$2
,4

77
Em

te
c 

Co
ns

ul
tin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
, L

LC
O

ra
cl

e 
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Sy
st

em
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
0,

00
0

$0
eP

at
h 

Le
ar

ni
ng

, I
nc

.
Bu

sin
es

s T
ra

in
in

g 
Li

br
ar

y
$1

0,
00

5
$0

eP
at

h 
Le

ar
ni

ng
, I

nc
.

Cl
ou

d-
Ba

se
d 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 / 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
of

tw
ar

e
$6

,1
80

$6
,1

80
Ev

er
br

id
ge

, I
nc

.
N

ix
le

 C
om

pu
te

r S
of

tw
ar

e 
(C

lo
ud

-b
as

ed
)

$1
1,

80
0

$0
G

eo
rg

e 
Hi

lls
 C

om
pa

ny
, I

nc
.

Th
ird

 P
ar

ty
 C

la
im

s A
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$1

0,
00

0
$0

G
HD

, I
nc

.
SW

PP
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e,
 A

ut
oC

AD
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
Tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 A

na
ly

sis
$1

10
,8

90
$0

G
ol

de
n 

G
at

e 
Br

id
ge

, H
ig

hw
ay

 a
nd

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Di
st

ric
t

W
ee

ke
nd

 B
us

 S
er

vi
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Sa

n 
Ra

fa
el

 T
ra

ns
it 

Ce
nt

er
 a

nd
 L

ar
ks

pu
r F

er
ry

$6
8,

66
4

$0
G

ol
de

n 
G

at
e 

Br
id

ge
, H

ig
hw

ay
 a

nd
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$3
35

,5
80

$2
0,

64
7

G
P 

Cr
an

e 
&

 H
oi

st
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Ca
l/O

SH
A 

Cr
an

e 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
5,

00
0

$0
G

ra
ni

te
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
m

pa
ny

N
on

-M
ot

or
iz

ed
 P

at
hw

ay
, P

ay
ra

n 
to

 S
ou

th
po

in
t

$1
,8

84
,7

57
$5

32
,4

68
Ha

nf
or

d 
A.

R.
C.

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

La
s G

al
lin

as
 C

re
ek

 R
ip

ar
ia

n 
En

ha
nc

em
en

t P
la

n
$1

5,
23

0
$0

Ha
ns

on
 B

rid
ge

tt
 L

LP
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s

$7
0,

00
0

$0
Ho

lla
nd

 C
om

pa
ny

Tr
ac

k 
G

eo
m

et
ry

 a
nd

 M
ea

su
re

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

4,
00

0
$0

In
du

st
ria

l R
ai

lw
ay

 C
om

pa
ny

Re
pl

ac
e 

Ex
ist

in
g 

#9
-1

36
# 

Ra
il 

Fr
og

 a
t M

P 
39

.7
$7

0,
88

4
$0

In
du

st
ria

l R
ai

lw
ay

s C
om

pa
ny

Ba
lla

st
 C

ar
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

$7
0,

88
4

$0
In

no
va

tiv
e 

Bu
sin

es
s S

ol
ut

io
ns

Pa
yr

ol
l P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$5

,0
00

$0
In

te
lle

tr
ac

e,
 In

c.
In

te
rn

et
/C

el
lu

la
r T

ow
er

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$4

0,
00

0
$0

In
te

lli
ge

nt
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
So

llu
tio

ns
, I

nc
.

M
ax

im
o 

M
M

S 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
76

,0
00

$0
Le

et
e 

G
en

er
at

or
s

G
en

er
at

or
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
$1

,4
32

$0
LM

 D
isa

bi
lit

y 
Co

ns
ul

tin
g

Di
sa

bi
lit

y 
Ac

ce
ss

 C
on

su
lti

ng
$1

2,
00

0
$7

75
LT

K 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
Ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
Sy

st
em

s D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
30

,0
00

$0
M

an
ag

ed
 H

ea
lth

 N
et

w
or

k
Em

pl
oy

ee
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

 P
ro

gr
am

 (E
AP

) S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

,3
38

$0
M

as
ab

i L
LC

SM
AR

T 
M

ob
ile

 T
ic

ke
tin

g 
Pi

lo
t P

ro
je

ct
$5

7,
60

0
$4

,7
50

M
ax

Ac
ce

l
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
of

tw
ar

e 
De

sig
n/

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n/
As

se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t
$1

4,
00

0
$0

M
az

e 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
ud

it 
Se

rv
ic

es
$4

6,
66

4
$0

M
G

ro
dn

er
, L

LC
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$9
4,

00
0

$0

Co
nt

ra
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y
Ac

tiv
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s a
s o

f J
ul
y 

31
, 2

01
9

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2

Page 14 of 18 



C
on

tr
ac

to
r

Sc
op

e
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 1
8/

19
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 1
8/

19
   

 
Ac

tu
al

s-
To

-D
at

e
N

et
w

ov
en

 In
c.

Sh
ar

eP
oi

nt
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, S

up
po

rt
, I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n,
 a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$4
8,

00
0

$4
,0

00
N

or
th

 B
ay

 S
AP

 S
er

vi
ce

s
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

Ab
us

e 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
$3

,8
00

$0
N

or
th

w
es

te
rn

 P
ac

ifi
c 

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Co
m

pa
ny

, I
nc

.
Pr

ov
isi

on
 a

nd
 O

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 B

al
la

st
 C

ar
 to

 m
ov

e 
Lo

co
m

ot
iv

e
$3

6,
00

0
$0

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 C

en
te

rs
 o

f C
A

Pr
e-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t E

va
lu

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$2

5,
00

0
$0

Pa
ro

di
 In

ve
st

ig
at

iv
e 

So
lu

tio
ns

Pr
e-

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
5,

00
0

$0
PF

M
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
dv

iso
rs

, L
LC

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
dv

iso
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$2

2,
00

0
$0

Pi
vo

ta
l V

isi
on

, L
LC

Se
cu

rit
y 

So
ft

w
ar

e 
Li

ce
ns

in
g

$2
,2

00
$0

Pl
at

in
um

 A
dv

iso
rs

, L
LC

St
at

e 
Le

gi
sla

tiv
e 

Ad
vo

ca
cy

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$6

0,
00

0
$0

Po
rt

ol
a 

Sy
st

em
s,

 In
c.

SM
AR

T 
St

at
io

n 
N

et
w

or
k 

Co
nf

ig
ur

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
$1

32
,1

16
$0

Pr
ec

isi
on

 W
ire

le
ss

Te
ch

 S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 fo
r L

an
d 

M
ob

ile
 R

ad
io

$2
5,

00
0

$0
Pr

em
ie

r F
al

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 In
c.

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
Ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r S
M

AR
T'

s F
al

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
$8

,0
00

$0
Ra

ilP
ro

s,
 In

c.
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r L

ar
ks

pu
r, 

W
in

ds
or

, a
nd

 S
ui

su
n

$2
97

,0
00

$0
Sa

nt
a 

Ro
sa

 F
ire

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
, I

nc
.

SM
AR

T 
Fi

re
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$7
,0

29
$0

Se
rv

Pr
o 

of
 L

ak
e 

M
en

do
ci

no
 a

nd
 S

on
om

a 
Co

un
ty

Bi
oh

az
ar

d 
Cl

ea
n-

U
p 

an
d 

Ha
zm

at
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
0,

00
0

$0
So

no
m

a 
Co

un
ty

 F
le

et
 O

pe
ra

tio
n 

Di
vi

sio
n

N
on

-R
ev

en
ue

 F
le

et
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$7
5,

00
0

$0
So

no
m

a 
Co

un
ty

 T
ra

ns
it

Bu
s S

er
vi

ce
 R

ou
te

 5
6 

(N
or

th
 S

ta
tio

ns
)

$1
92

,1
09

$1
6,

83
9

Sp
er

ry
 R

ai
l S

er
vi

ce
Ra

il 
Fl

aw
 D

et
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

$1
3,

50
0

$0
SP

TJ
 C

on
su

lti
ng

N
et

w
or

k 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, S
ec

ur
ity

, M
ig

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
Se

tu
p 

Se
rv

ic
es

$3
65

,5
80

$0
St

ac
y 

an
d 

W
itb

ec
k

Ra
ilr

oa
d 

Tr
ac

k 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, A

lig
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

Re
st

or
at

io
n

$2
20

,0
00

$0
St

ac
y 

an
d 

W
itb

ec
k/

He
rz

og
, J

V
De

sig
n/

Bu
ild

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 C
iv

il,
 T

ra
ck

 &
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

s I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

f L
ar

ks
pu

r E
xt

en
sio

n
$7

,3
07

,6
03

$0
St

an
te

c 
Co

ns
ul

tin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

, I
nc

.
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l P

er
m

it 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

on
ito

rin
g

$9
2,

27
7

$0
St

er
ic

yc
le

, I
nc

.
M

ed
ic

al
 W

as
te

 P
ic

k-
U

p 
an

d 
Di

sp
os

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$1
,9

18
$0

Su
e 

Ev
an

s
Re

al
 E

st
at

e 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

7,
84

9
$0

Su
m

ito
m

o 
Co

rp
or

at
io

n
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
 &

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 R
ai

l V
eh

ic
le

s
$1

4,
56

7,
20

1
$1

0,
31

7,
19

7
Su

m
m

it 
Si

gn
al

, I
nc

.
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Ca
ll-

O
ut

 S
er

vi
ce

s f
or

 T
ra

ck
 a

nd
 S

ig
na

ls
$1

0,
00

0
$0

Su
rv

iv
al

 C
PR

 &
 F

irs
t A

id
, L

LC
Fi

rs
t A

id
 a

nd
 C

PR
 T

ra
in

in
g,

 A
ED

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

$5
,0

00
$0

Th
e 

G
BS

 G
ro

up
In

te
rn

et
 C

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
 (W

i-F
i) 

fo
r S

M
AR

T 
Tr

ai
ns

$3
31

,8
71

$5
7,

26
7

U
ni

te
d 

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l I

nc
or

po
ra

te
d

Br
id

ge
 T

en
de

r H
ou

se
 H

VA
C 

In
st

al
l P

ro
je

ct
$8

,7
49

$0
U

ni
te

d 
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l I
nc

or
po

ra
te

d
HV

AC
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s a

t S
M

AR
T 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
$2

0,
70

0
$0

Va
n 

Sc
oy

oc
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s
Fe

de
ra

l L
ob

by
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
$3

0,
00

0
$0

Ve
nT

ek
 T

ra
ns

it 
In

c.
Cl

ip
pe

r V
en

di
ng

 M
ac

hi
ne

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

nd
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$6
30

,6
06

$0
W

BE
Ex

ist
in

g 
CC

TV
 S

ys
te

m
 O

n-
Ca

ll 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
$5

0,
00

0
$1

,1
91

W
es

t C
oa

st
 A

rb
or

ist
s,

 In
c.

Tr
ee

 T
rim

m
in

g,
 R

em
ov

al
, a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

$5
0,

00
0

$0
W

RA
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

on
su

lta
nt

s
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l P

er
m

itt
in

g,
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
&

 S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
$1

37
,2

16
$0

TO
TA

LS
:

$2
8,

91
7,

96
3

$1
0,

98
2,

20
5

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2

*A
ct

ua
ls-

To
-D

at
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 in
vo

ic
es

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 o

f J
ul
y 

31
, 2

01
9,

 b
ut

 m
ay

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
ce

ss
ed

 in
 S

M
AR

T'
s F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ys

te
m

.

Page 15 of 18 



Page 16 of 18 



Page 17 of 18 



Page 18 of 18 


	01_Agenda_08.21.2019
	02_Unapproved Minutes_08.07.2019
	06a_Monthly Financial Reports
	07_Sole Source KNORR Purchase Order
	08_2019 Strategic Plan Review



